
 

 

 

 San Francisco SRO Task Force 
 

1 0 1  G r o v e  S t . ,  R o o m  3 1 2  

S a n  F r a n c i s c o ,  C A   9 4 1 0 2  

( 4 1 5 )  5 5 4 - 2 6 3 3  
 

 Members: 

 

Margot Antonetty 

DPH Housing & Urban Health 

 

Rosemary Bosque, J.D. 

Department of Building Inspection 

 

Jeff Buckley 

Central City SRO Collaborative 

 

Bruce Burge 

SRO Operator 

 

Angela Chu 

Chinatown SRO Collaborative 

 

Patrick Flanagan 

Tenant Representative 

 

Seth Katzman 

Nonprofit SRO Owner/Manager 

 

Matthias Mormino 

SRO Families United Collaborative 

 

Johnson Ojo 

DPH Environmental Health Services 

 

Sam Patel 

SRO Operator 

 

Jorge Portillo 

Mission SRO Collaborative 

 

Charles Siron 

Tenant Representative 

 

Alex Tse, J.D. 

City Attorney’s Office 

 

Scott Walton 

Human Services Agency 

 

Chair: 

 

Matthias Mormino - Interim 

SRO Families United Collaborative 

SRO HOTEL HEALTH & SAFETY TASK FORCE COMMITTEE 

MINUTES – January 20, 2011 

101 Grove, Room 302 

 

Chair:  Matthias Mormino (SRO Families United Collaborative) 

Members Present:  Margot Antonetty (DPH-HUH); Rosemary Bosque (DBI); Jeff 

Buckley (Central City SRO Collaborative); Bruce Burge (SRO Operator); Angela 

Chu (Chinatown SRO Collaborative); Patrick Flanagan (SRO Tenant); Seth 

Katzman (Conard House); Matthias Mormino (SRO Families United 

Collaborative); Johnson Ojo (DPH-BEHS); Sam Patel (Independent Hotel Owners 

& Operators); Charles Siron (SRO Tenant); Alex Tse, JD (City Attorney’s Office); 

Scott Walton (HSA-Housing & Homeless Programs) 

Absent:  Unexcused – None; Excused – None 

Guests:  Vivian Day (DBI); Tomas Picarello (SRO Tenant); Charles Pitts (SRO 

Tenant); Edward Sweeney (DBI); Eric Whitney (DPH-HUH); Andrew Williams 

(DPH-HUH) 

Minutes:  Jim Soos (DPH-OPP) 

 

1.  Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Matthias Mormino at 9:06 am. 

 

2. Roll call/Determination of Quorum 

Matthias asked people to introduce themselves.  There was a quorum. 

 

3. Approval of Minutes of December 16, 2010 (Action)  

There were some discrepancies in last month’s meeting.  Minutes showed that Jorge 

Portillo was present, but he was absent.  

 

Public Comment: 

Tomas Picarello corrected his public comment striking the last sentence to be 

replaced with: Tenants ought to withhold rent and demand a jury trial if they are 

victims of bug infestations.   

Action – With these changes the minutes were approved. 

4. Administrative Announcements (Discussion)  

Scott Walton announced that the Citywide Homeless Count will take place on 

1/27/11.  HSA is seeking volunteers. 

 

Matthias announced that he is resigning from the SRO Families United 

Collaborative and the SRO Task Force.  This is his last meeting. 

 

Rosemary Bosque requested that item 8 be moved up on the agenda to 

accommodate the schedules of DBI Director Vivian Day and DBI Deputy Director 

Edward Sweeney. 

 

5.   Election of New Task Force Chair 

 

Rosemary reported that at the December meeting, the Task Force had requested 

whether DBI could provide administrative support to the Task Force.  DBI Deputy 

Director Edward Sweeney announced that he would follow up on the request. 



Page 2 of 5 

Matthias reported that at the December meeting, it was moved and approved that a representative of one 

of the City agencies on the Task Force should chair the Task Force.  Johnson Ojo stated that he could not 

accept nomination. 

 

Seth Katzman asked whether there would be a conflict if Alex Tse were chair.  Alex responded in the 

affirmative, stating that he would have a conflict as an enforcement agency. 

 

Johnson Ojo nominated Rosemary.  Seth asked the same question about a conflict for Rosemary.  

Rosemary stated that she was willing to accept a nomination, if the City Attorney felt she wouldn’t have a 

conflict due to her work in code enforcement.  Alex responded that if there were a code enforcement item 

on the agenda she would need to recuse herself from participating, but otherwise could serve as chair. 

 

Johnson also nominated Scott Walton as chair, which Scott accepted. 

 

Motion:  Rosemary Bosque be elected chair. 

 

Public comment: 

 

Tomas Picarello supported Rosemary’s election. 

 

Charles Pitts supported Rosemary’s election. 

 

Action: 

 

The motion was approved unanimously.    

 

6. Removal of Two SRO Task Force Members (Patrick Flanagan and Charles Siron) Under 

Article II, §3 and §8 of the SRO Task Force Bylaws  (Discussion & Possible Action)  

 

Matthias requested that Patrick Flanagan and Charles Siron explain the reasons for their irregular 

attendance and their desire to continue as Task Force members. 

 

Patrick apologized for his recent absence at meetings.  He stated that he wants to focus on violence in 

SROs and tenant relocations.  For the last three meetings, the agenda items have not been of interest to 

him.  He added that until the City can guarantee tenant safety in SROs, people are safer on the streets. 

 

Charles stated that in 2009 and 2010, he has had a number of health problems, which have precluded his 

attending meetings, though stated he is interested in continuing to serve on the Task Force. 

 

Seth asked Patrick about his ongoing commitment and willingness to serve.  Patrick stated that he is 

interested if violence prevention comes up soon.  Scott noted the need to attend meetings in order to set 

the agendas for upcoming meetings and the need to notify the chair if unable to attend.  Alex stated that he 

is not persuaded by Patrick’s explanation. 

 

Matthias asked how the Task Force would like to proceed.  Jim Soos noted that according to the bylaws,  

any member in violation of the attendance policy shall be sent a letter informing them of their possible 

dismissal, and the Task Force could then vote in a publicly noticed meeting about dismissal.  He reported 

that neither Patrick nor Charles had been sent a letter.  He agreed to draft a letter to both Patrick and 

Charles for Rosemary’s signature and put the item back on the February Task Force agenda. 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 5 

Public Comment: 

 

Charles Picarello stated that Hank Wilson resigned from the Shelter Monitoring Committee when he was 

too sick to attend.  He added that attendance for both Patrick and Charles seems to be based on when 

removal from the Task Force is put on the agenda. 

 

7. Families in SROs Survey 

 

Deferred to February meeting. 

 

8. Follow-Up on Bedbug Eradication – Activities & Next Steps (Discussion and Possible Action)

  

Johnson reported that from the December meeting he heard that the directives for tenants were not good 

enough and needed to be changed.  He went back and checked on them, and found them very close to 

what’s exists in regulation.  He is concerned that by adding additional information, they will become 

cumbersome and overwhelming for tenants.  He believes that the information for owners/managers is 

clear.  He does have concerns about the pest control companies, including how to provide oversight that 

they are doing good work and how to ensure that they give tenants the proper information to prepare their 

rooms. 

 

He believes that what is needed is protocol, place, or City agency to help tenants prepare their rooms.  

He’s been working with IHSS and other City agencies to develop a specific protocol on how to work with 

tenants with bedbugs, and believes the next step is a meeting with the pest control companies licensed in 

San Francisco, as not all are well trained in bedbug eradication.  He also noted a problem with the 

protocols for dumpsters on sidewalks outside of infested buildings.  Frequently, items placed in the 

dumpsters are improperly treated and bagged.  Additionally, there is no protocol on how long these 

dumpsters should remain on the sidewalk.  He added that residences with chronic infestations typically 

have gaps in the treatment protocols. 

 

Johnson noted that this problem is not unique to San Francisco, and exists nationwide.  The EPA is 

hosting an upcoming symposium on bedbugs.  He believes that San Francisco is ahead of the curve 

compared with other cities. 

 

He distributed two documents:  “SRO Hotels Manager’s Guidelines for Controlling Bedbugs,” and 

“Tenant’s Guide to Bedbugs,” which Environmental Health has written in English, Spanish, and Chinese 

for distribution.  Both are available on the DPH Environmental Health website.  If people have comments 

on either document, he invited them to call him directly at 252-3858. 

 

He also noted that pest control companies frequently won’t work in filthy or cluttered rooms, and they 

need to be properly cleaned first.  IHSS can help provide support. 

 

Scott reported that for HSA master lease programs, there is a monthly pest inspection.  Tenants get a 

warning if inspectors are unable to inspect a room due to its condition. 

 

Jeff Buckley stated that residents are not happy with the way the City is currently addressing bedbugs.  

There is a lack of clarity around enforcement.  People don’t know where to go to file a complaint.  3-1-1 is 



Page 4 of 5 

helpful, but the average person doesn’t have sufficient knowledge of government to know where to go.  

The goal needs to be greater clarity.  Guidelines are not enough; there must be consequences. 

 

Sam Patel agreed that more enforcement is needed as a City response, but that it needs to be on the tenant 

side as well. 

 

Johnson noted that bedbugs are resilient and increasing hard to eradicate.  The Health Code is the only 

power he has and it is applied consistently.  He added that the Code puts the onus on the building owner.  

DPH holds an abatement conference every Tuesday.  The next step is the Director’s Hearing, and the only 

options are a finding of “abated” or a finding of “public nuisance,” which results in an order to vacate, as 

the space is not fit for human habitation.  He’s loath to go that far as he doesn’t want to create additional 

homelessness.  In addition to IHSS, he’s also been working with Mental Health, Adult Protective Services 

and the three Collaboratives to assist tenants.  For 800 hotels citywide, he has two inspectors, and bedbugs 

are now consuming about 30 percent of their time. 

 

Jorge Portillo stated that he recognizes the size of the task, but believes there is no clarity on how things 

happen.  There are gaps between the responsible City departments regarding who’s doing what and who 

knows what.  There is also no certification for pest control companies on bedbug eradication. 

 

Bruce Burge asked Jeff what additional enforcement is needed.  Jeff responded that similar to a DBI 

citation, there need to be consequences for owners and tenants regarding what each party needs to do by 

when.  Johnson responded that the new Avalos ordinance does penalize anyone creating a public nuisance 

at up to $1,000 per day, but he questioned how to enforce that provision.  He sees a need to find common 

ground among tenants and owners to work together.  He recommended that poor pest control companies 

should face complaints to the State and possible revocation of their licenses. 

 

Jeff asked for clarity on what is needed for DPH to issue a citation? Is a live bedbug necessary?  He 

questioned whether the City can ban bad pest control companies, and noted that there is no certification 

for bedbug eradication.  He suggested that tenants have a right to reasonable accommodation.  Johnson 

responded that DPH is clear:  a live or dead bedbug is not necessary, although finding a bedbug will elicit 

a Notice of Violation.  As to tenant relocation, who pays for that?  The $50,000 to $60,000 that DPH has 

for bedbug mitigation is not sufficient. 

 

Bruce stated that he’s found the process unambiguous.  If DPH finds a bedbug, they write it up, if they 

have a complaint, but don’t find a bug, they will leave a trap.  Johnson added that leaving a trap is a best 

practice. 

 

Seth recommended continuing the discussion to the February meeting. 

 

Jorge stated that his frustration is that the answers aren’t written somewhere that can be easily found or 

refer to tenants. 

 

Scott stated that this problem can’t be addressed in a 1-1/2 hour meeting, one time per month.  He 

recommended a smaller group to address this.  Jeff responded that the Central City Collaborative does 

have weekly bedbug meetings.  Scott supported this, but added that the Task Force should have a small 



Page 5 of 5 

group as well.  Matthias asked for volunteers for a small group, Bruce, Scott, Sam, Jeff, and Jorge 

volunteered.  Alex added that he would like to hear from APS and IHSS. 

 

Public Comment: 

 

Tomas Picarello stated that two inspectors do not constitute code enforcement.  He added that code 

enforcement benefits both tenants and owners. 

 

An unidentified woman stated that an independent oversight committee was called for at the DBI hearing.  

She stated that there is a need for non-toxic, green pest control agents.  She suggested contracts to non-

profit agencies to allow for tenant action. 

 

9. Reports from the SRO Collaboratives (Discussion and Possible Action) 

 

None 

 

10. Prioritization of Future Meeting Topics (Discussion and Possible Action) 

 Removal of Tenant Representatives (Patrick Flanagan and Charles Siron) for attendance 

violations 

 Follow-up on bedbug protocols and leaflets 

 Family survey 

 

11. Public Comment 

 

Tomas Picarello thanked Jim and Matthias for their service to the Task Force. 

 

Charles Pitts commented on the need for wrap-around services in SROs and the need for a better model, 

including services in private SROs.  

 

12.  Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 10:35 a.m. 


